IN THE SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL, : No. 2370 Disciplinary Docket No. 3

Petitioner : No. 49 DB 2017
V. . Attorney Registration No. 33822
DAVID LEONARD QUATRELLA, : (Out of State)
Respondent
ORDER

PER CURIAM
AND NOW, this 8t" day of July, 2019, upon consideration of the Verified Statement

of Resignation, David Leonard Quatrella is disbarred on consent from the Bar of this
Commonwealth retroactive to April 6, 2017, see Pa.R.D.E. 215, and he shall comply with
the provisions of Pa.R.D.E. 217. Respondent shall pay costs to the Disciplinary Board
pursuant to Pa.R.D.E. 208(g).

A True Co&g// Patricia Nicola

As Of 07/08/2019
Attest; ""W
Chief Clerk

Supreme Court of Pennsylvania



BEFORE THE DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF
THE SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA

In the Matter of : No. 2370 Disciplinary Docket
: No.3
DAVID LEONARD QUATRELLA

: Board File No. C2-17-203

: (United States District Court for the
. District of Connecticut

: Case No. 3:17CR3)

: Attorney Registration No. 33822

: (OUT OF STATE)

RESIGNATION
UNDER Pa.R.D.E. 215

David Leonard Quatrella, hereby tenders his unconditional resignation from the practice of
law in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in conformity with Pa.R.D.E. 215 ("Enforcement Rules")
and further states as follows:

1. He is an attorney admitted in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, having been
admitted to the bar on or about May 4, 1981. His attorney registration number is 33822.

2. He desires to submit his resignation as a member of said bar.

3. His resignation is freely and voluntarily rendered; he is not being subjected to
coercion or duress and he is fully aware of the implications of submitting this resignation.

4. He acknowledges that he is fully aware of his right to consult and employ counsel to
represent him in the instant proceeding. He hasas-sat retained, consulted with and acted upon the
advice of counsel in connection with his decision to execute the within resignation.

5. He is aware that there are presently pending disciplinary proceedings instituted

against him pursuant to Rule 214, Pa.R.D.E. relating to his criminal conviction in the matter
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captioned United States of America v. David Quatrella, Case No. 3:17CR3, United States District
Court for the District of Connecticut.

6. He acknowledges that the material facts which form the basis for his criminal matter
are true and that he has entered a plea of guilty to one count of conspiracy to commit wire fraud in
violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371. A true and correct copy of the Criminal Information is attached hereto,
made a part hereof and marked Exhibit "A".

7. He acknowledges that the crime to which he has pled guilty is punishable by
imprisonment.

8. He acknowledges that the conviction constitutes a per se ground for discipline under
Rule 203(b)(1), Pa.R.D.E.

9. He acknowledges that under Rule 214(f)(1), Pa.R.D.E., he would be entitled to the
institution of a formal proceeding before a hearing committee in which the sole issue to be
determined would be the extent of discipline to be imposed.

10.  He submits the within resignation because he knows that he could not successfully
defend himself against the charges of professional misconduct that are being brought in connection
with his conviction.

11.  He is fully aware that the submission of this Resignation Statement is irrevocable and
that he can only apply for reinstatement to the practice of law pursuant to the provisions of
Enforcement Rule 218(b) and (c).

12.  Heis aware that pursuant to Enforcement Rule 215(c) the fact that he has tendered his
resignation shall become a matter of public record immediately upon delivery of the Resignation

Statement to Disciplinary Counsel or the to Disciplinary Board.



13.  Uponentry of the order disbarring him on consent, he will promptly comply with the
notice, withdrawal, resignation, trust account, and cease-and-desist provisions of Enforcement Rule
217 (a), (b), (c) and (d).

14.  After entry of the order disbarring him on consent, he will file a verified statement of
compliance as required by Enforcement Rule 217(e)(1).

15.  He is aware that the waiting period for eligibility to apply for reinstatement to the
practice of law under Enforcement Rule 218(b) shall not begin until he files the verified statement of
compliance required by Enforcement Rule 217(e)(1), and if the order of disbarment contains a
provision that makes the disbarment retroactive to an earlier date, then the waiting period will be
deemed to have begun on that earlier date.

16. He requests that his disbarment be made retroactive to April 6, 2017, the date that the
temporary suspension Order was entered. He is advised that the Office of Disciplinary Counsel does
not oppose his request. He understands that the decision to grant his request lies solely within the
discretion of the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania.

It is understood that the statements made herein are subject to the penalties of 18 Pa.C.S.,

Section 4904 (relating to unsworn falsification to authorities).

(ol Dbl

David Leonerd Quatrella

Signed thid’%ay of ™WAY 2019

WITNESS: 08 U<
Branden 1j+acn




Case 3:17-cr-00003-AWT Document 1 Filed 01/04KIBHERERAGY Blotrict Court
District of Cannecticut
FILED AT HA TFORD

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA CRIMINAL NO. 3:17CR§_(AWT)
v. VIOLATION:
DAVID QUATRELLA 18 U.S.C. § 371 (Conspiracy)
INFORMATION
The United States Attorney charges:

COUNT ONE
(Conspiracy)

The Defendant

1 At all relevant times, the defendant, DAVID QUATRELLA, was a

resident of Connecticut and an attorney licensed to practice law in Connecticut.
Background Regarding Life Insurance Policies

2. A life insurance policy is a contract between a life insurance company
and a policy owner and/or insured person. A policy normally requires the insurance
company to pay a sum of money to the insured’s beneficiary, who often is a relative
of the insured, upon the insured’s death_ This sum of money is commonly referred to
as the “death benefit.” To put in force and maintain the validity of a policy, the
insured usually makes periodic payments, known as “premiums,” to the insurance
company throughout the policy period.

3. Universal life policies are one of several types of life insurance policies
offered by life insurance companies. As with other types of life insurance policies, a

universal life policy provides a death benefit to the insured’s beneficiaries and
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requires premium payments to the insurance companies. A defining feature of
universal life policies was that the insured typically had the option of paying
additional premium amounts above the amount required to keep the policy valid. Any
amount paid in excess of the required premium becomes a policy’s cash value. A
policy’s cash value earns interest and can be used to satisfy future premium
payments. The interest accrues on a tax-deferred basis. Insurance companies
benefited from the investment profits and realized increased cash flow generated by
excess premium payments.

4. In recent years, a derivative market for life insurance has developed in
which existing life insurance policies are sold to third parties who lack an insurable
interest in the life of the insured. Typically referred to as a “life settlement” or “senior
settlement,” these sales narmally are lawful, assuming that the policy was procured
for legitimate purposes and that there was an “insurable interest” at the policy’s
inception. An example of a circumstance in which a policy holder may choose to sell
a policy is an unforeséen life event that necessitates the current use of funds paid
into a policy or the inability to continue to pay premiums to keep the policy in force.

5.  An “insurable interest” is defined as an interest in the continued life of
the insured individual. A person is considered to have an insurable interest when, at
the time of policy issuance, that person is in a position where he or she hopes for the
continued life of the insured and will be damaged by the insured’s death, and thus
uses the policy proceeds (i.e., the death benefit) to mitigate that damage.

6. As this derivative market has developed, some have sought life
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insurance policies not for legitimate insurance needs, but rather with the intent that
investors (or others lacking an insurable interest) will obtain ownership of the
policies. Among other terms, policies procured under these circumstances have
become known as stranger-originated life insurance (“STOLI”) policies. At all times
relevant to this Information, it was the practice of life insurance providers to deny an
application for a universal life insurance policy if the policy holder intended, from the
outset, to resell the policy, or if the policy holder financed the policy through an
investor whose ultimate intent was to take over ownership of the policy.

7.  In a typical prohibited STOLI transaction, the STOLI investor (or the
investor’s representative) induces a prospective insured, often a senior citizen, to
purchase a life insurance policy that he or she likely would not otherwise have
purchased. The prospective insured applies for the poiicy with a prior understanding
to cede control of the policy to the investor. The prospective insured and the investor
agree that, at the end of a given period, ownership of the policy will be transferred to
the investor, or some other third party, who would expect to receive the death benefit
when the insured dies.

8. The investor (or the investor’s repf%entaﬁve) may arrange financing of
the premiums during the time the initial policy holder owns the policy by means of
non-recourse premium financing; that is, the only collateral for the loan is the
insurance policy itself. When the policy is transferred, the loan may be forgiven in
return for control over the policy. Indeed, STOLI arrangements may be marketed as

“free insurance,” because during the period prior to transfer of the policy, the insured
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has life insurance protection, paid for with a loan that will not have to be repaid if
the policy is ultimately transfarred. As a result, life insurance providers use the
existence of non-recourse premium financing as one indicator of a STOLI policy.

9. Life insurance providers typically take several steps to prevent the
issuance of STOLI policies because, among other things, such policies canse a
discrepancy between the benefits reasonably anticipated by the providers and the
actual benefits received. To ensure that STOLI policies are not issued, the providers,
among other- things, request and rely on representations from insurance agents and
applicants regarding (a) the insured and/or policy owner’s intent to resell the policy,
or discussions regarding the possibility of resale; (b) the existence of third-party
payment of premiums; and (c) the purpose of procuring the policy.

10.  The facts underlying these representations made by and on behalf of the
applicants were essential elements of the agreements between life insurance
providers and insureds and/or policy owners. An insured and/or owner’s intent to
resell a policy, the existence of third-party financing of premiums, and the purpose of
the policy, significantly informed life insurance companies’ financial expectations
with respect to universal life policies. Accordingly, where life insurance providers
were deceived into issuing a universal life policy based on misrepresentations and/or
fraudulent statements regarding the above-referenced factors, the providers were
harmed in several ways, including by undermining providers’ assumptions regarding
how frequently policies would lapse, and by altering providers’ expectations about

how much premium policy holders would put into their universal life policies.
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The Scheme and Artifice to Defrand the Life Insurance Providers

11. From in or ebout June 2008 up to and including in or about January
2016, QUATRELLA and others known and unknown to the United States Attorney
engaged in a scheme and artifice to defraud life insurance providers and to obtain
money and property from the providers by means of materially false and fraudulent
representations regarding the purpose of certain insurance policies, the presence of
premium financing, and the intent of the applicant to sell the policy, in order toinduce
the providers to issue life insurance policies in reliance upon such false and
misleading information.

Use of Interstate Wires

12. It was a part of the scheme and artifice to defrand that QUATRELLA
and others known and unknown, willfully and knowingly, having devised and
intending to devise a scheme and artifice to defraud, and for obtaining money and
property by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises,
would and did transmit and cause to be transmitted, in interstate commerce by
means of wire communications, certain writings, signs, signals, pictures, and sounds
for the purpose of executing such scheme and artifice, in violation of Title 18, United

States Code, Section 1343.

The Conspiracy
13. From in or about June 2008 up to and including in or about January

20186, in the District of Connecticut and elsewhere, QUATRELLA and others known
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and unknown, willfully and knowingly did combine, conspire, confederate, and agree
together and with each other to commit wire fraud as described above, in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.

Manner and Me f the Conspira.

14. The manner and means by which QUATRELILA and his co-conspirators
sought to accomplish the purposes of the conspiracy included, among other things,
the following:

15. QUATRELLA, and/or other co-conspirators, would and did recruit
elderly persons to apply for life insurance policies. |

16. QUATRELLA, and/or other co-conspirators, would and did offer to the
insureds the pmﬁise of free life insurance for two years, after which QUATRELLA
and/or other co-conspirators would attempt to sell the policy, and provide a share of
the proceeds to the insured. The insured was not obligated to pay anything; he/she
was commonly told that the premiums were being borrowed from z third party source.

17. 'QUATRELLA, and/or other co-conspirators, would and did recruit
investors to finance the payment of premiums on the life insurance policies, with the
understanding that the investors would earn a profit upon the sale of the policy.

18. QUATRELLA, and/or other co-conspirators, would and did cause to be
submitted to various ﬁfe insurance providers applications contaihing materially false
and misleading information regarding, among othef things, the existence of third-
party payment of premiums and the intent to sell the policy, with the intent to induce

fraudulently the providers to issue insurance policies on the lives of the insureds.
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19. QUATRELLA, and/or other co-conspirators, would and did fail te
disclose to the providers any information or documentation regarding premium
funding arrangements for the policies, with the purpose of hiding the existence of
such arrangements from the providers.

20. QUATRELLA, and/or other co-conspiraters, would and did regularly
receive large commissions from the providers as a result of the issuance.of insurance
policies on the lives of the insureds.

21. QUATRELLA, and/or other co-conspirators, would and did talke steps to
attempt to sell the life insurance policies to life settlement investment funds or
brokers.

22. By way of example, on or about October 2, 2008, QUATRELLA and his
co-conspirators caused D.S., an elderly client of QUATRELILA’s law firm, to apply for
and obtain a $15 million life insurance policy from Lincoln National Life Insurance
Company (“Lincoln”™). For his role in causing the issuance of D.S.s policy,
QUATRELLA earned approximately $174,000 in commissions from Lincoln.

23. QUATRELLA helped D.S. to complete the application and, in so doing,
falsely certified to Lincoln that, among other things, the policy premiums were not
being financed by any third party and there was no intention on the part of the
insured to sell the policy.

24. QUATRELLA also used his position as D.S.’s attorney to write a letter

on his law firm’s stationery to Lincoln’s agent, in which QUATRELLA falsely
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represented that the life insurance policy was needed for D.S.’s estate planning
purposes.

25. In truth, QUATRELLA knew that the policy premiums were being
financed by a pool of investors, many of whom QUATREILA recruited from among
his law firm’s other clients. Further, it was the intention of QUATRELLA and his co-
conspirators to facilitate the sale of D.S.’s policy after two years to other downstream
investors at a profit to the initial pool of investors.

26. In furtherance of the conspiracy, QUATRELLA transmitted premium
payments from the initial pool of investors to Lincoln via checks and interstate wire
transfers from QUATRELLA’s attorney trust account at Bank of America, N.A.

27. Ultimately, however, QUATRELLA and his co-conspirators could not
find a buyer for D.S’s policy, and the policy was permitted to lapse in er about
January 2016.

The J.8. Policy

28. QUATRELLA and his co-conspirators also arranged for another elderly
insured, J.8., to apply for and obtain a $10 million life insurance policy from Lincoln,
with an effective date of on or about December 28, 2009. For his role in causing the
issuance of J.S.s policy, QUATRELLA earned approximately $98,000 in
commissions. |

29. J.S. was not a client of QUATRELLA's law firm, and QUATRELLA did
not help to complete J.S.’s application. However, QUATRELLA connected J.S. with

his co-conspirators for the purpose of having J.8. apply for a life insurance policy, and
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QUATRELLA knew and intended that J.S’s application contained material
misrepresentations as to the policy’s purpose, the means by which the premiums
would be paid, and the intent to sell the policy to downstream investors after two
years.

30. QUATRELLA also recruited from among his law firm’s clients the initial
pool of investors to pay the policy premiums, and QUATRELLA transmitted premium
payments to Lincoln via checks and interstate wire transfers from his attorney trust
account.

31. Uliimately, QUATRELILA and his co-conspirators could not find & buyer
for J.8.'a policy, and on or about February 24, 2014, the palicy lapsed for nonpayment
of premiums.

32. On or about March 6, 2014, QUATRELLA directed a paralegal to place
an interstate telephone call to Lincoln for the purpose of having the policy reinstated.
QUATRELLA instructed the paralegal via email not to “mention anything about the
loan of the premium from my clients.” Nevertheless, QUATRELLA and his co-
conspirators were not successful in having the policy reinstated.

Overt Acts

33. In furtherance of the conspu'acy and to achieve the objects thereof, at
least one of the co-conspirators committed or caused to be committed, in the District
of Connecticut, and elsewhere, at least one of the following overt acts, amongothers:

34. On or about July 27, 2015, QUA'I"RELLA transmitted a premium

payment of $65,000 from the initial pool of investors on the D.S. policy to Lincoln via



;

Case 3:17-cr-00003-AWT Document 1 Filed 01/04/17 Page 10 of 11

an interstate wire transfer from QUATRELILA’s attorney trust account.

35. On or about September 28, 2015, QUATRELLA transmitted a premium
payment of $64,000 from the initial pool of investors on the D.S. policy to Lincoln via
an interstate wire transfer from QUATRELLA's attorney trust account.

36. On or about November 25, 2015, QUATRELLA transmitted a premium
payment of $75,000 from the initial pool of investors on the D.S. policy to Lincoln via
an interstate wire transfer from QUATREILA’é attorney trust account.

37. On or abeut December 1, 2015, QUATRELLA transmitted a premium
payment of $1,100 from the initial pool of investors on the D.S. policy to Lincoln via
an interstate wire transfer from QUATRELLA’s attorney trust account. |

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

FORFEITURE ATION
38. Upon conviction of the conspiracy offense alleged in Count One of this

Information, the defendant, DAVID QUATRELLA, shall forfeit to the United States
of America, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 981(aX1)(C) and 28 U.8.C. § 2461(c), all right,
title, and interest in any and all property, real or personal, which constitutes or is
derived from proceeds traceable to violations of 18 U.S.C. § 371, including but not
limited to a sum of money equal to $272,000.

39. If any of the above-described forfeitable property, as a result of any act
or omission of the defendant, cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence, has
been transferred, sold to, or deposited with a third party, has been placed beyond the
jurisdiction of the court, has been substantially diminished in value, or has been

commingled with other property which cannot be divided without difficulty, it is the
10
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intent of the United States, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853(p), as incorporated by 28
U.S.C. § 2461(c), to seek forfeiture of any other property of said defendant up to the
value of the forfeitable propefty described above.

All in accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)1) as incorporated by 28 U.S.C.

§ 2461(c), and Rule 32.2(a), Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

PRV
DEIRDRE M. DALY. ./
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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